1 2 3 4 5 6	TOWN OF KINGSTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE MUNICIPAL BUDGET COMMITTEE BUDGET REVIEW MEETING January 6, 2018 DRAFT MINUTES
7 8	
9	
10	1. CALL TO ORDER/ POSTINGS
11	Chair Rick Edelman called KMBC meeting to order at 9:10am. Board of Soloctman mooting called to order at 9:00am
12 13	Board of Selectman meeting called to order at 9:09am.
13	2. ATTENDANCE
15	Present:
16	Rick Edelman, Carol Croteau, Sandy Seaman, Larry Heath, Ed Conant,
17	Charles Hart, Mary Fidler, Gary Shallet, Stanley Shalett, Lynn Gainty,
18	Sandi Rogers-Osterloh.
19	BOS members: Peter Broderick, George Korn, Mark Heitz
20	
21	<u>Absent:</u>
22	Lyndsey Cunningham excused.
23	
24	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
25	Per Rick Edelman, December 10, 2017 minutes were sent to town
26 27	clerk, but were not sent out to him, so that is why KMBC members have not received yet. Mr Edelman said that he will get the minutes
27 28	sent to the KMBC members for approval at our Saturday, January 13,
28 29	2018 meeting.
30	
31	4. NEW BUSINESS
32	
33	Motion Made by Carol Croteau, second by Lynn Gainty, to have Glenn
34	Coppleman present the 2018 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) to the
35	KMBC and Board of Selectman. Motion passed.
36	

Page 1 of 32

Mr Coppleman passed out a copy of the Draft Capital Improvement 37 Plan to the KMBC and Board of Selectman. Mr Coppleman stated that 38 the CIP is a document that is allowed by state statute for towns that 39 have Master Plans. State statute states, the Planning Board is in 40 charge of generating the CIP report by subcommittee. KMBC also 41 participate on this subcommittee. This document is a report that 42 reviews department capital expenditures of over \$10,000 over a six 43 year time period. The 2018 CIP report reviews the years 2018-2023. 44 The CIP is an advisory document only, it does not raise or appropriate 45 money. It is meant as a planning tool for the Board of Selectman and 46 Budget Committee. The CIP report that Mr Coppleman presented was 47 a draft document and will be presented and accepted by the Planning 48 Board. 49

50

51 Mr Coppleman asked members to turn to the spreadsheet within the 52 document to review the information. The spreadsheet listed the 53 projects or equipment, dollar values and the year the project is 54 anticipated to be done. The spreadsheet also indicated the funding 55 stream of the project or equipment, ie: warrant article, CRP, or 56 budget line.

57

61

64

58
59 Motion made by Ed Conant to take Fire out of order, second by Sandy
60 Seaman. Motion passed.

62 Mr Edelman stated that if someone wanted to discuss or change a 63 budget line, to call a Bye, and the line will be tagged for review.

## 65 **FIRE 4220**

66 Ed Conant read the budget lines.

67

73

68 **Comstar:** Rick Edelman asked Fire Chief Seaman to explain this line. 69 Per Fire Chief Seaman, he has been working with Seacoast Fire Chiefs 70 by going out for an RFP for a new Billing Agent. This line is offset by 71 revenues, but with higher revenues, the costs are higher. The new 72 billing agent is out of Pennsylvania.

Electricity: Rick Edelman made motion to fund this line at \$9500,
 second by Charles Hart

Discussion: Per Chief Seaman he refers this line to the Board of 76 Selectman. 77 78 Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed 79 80 **Equipment Repair:** Rick Edelman made motion to reduce this line to 81 \$6800, second by Carol Croteau 82 Ed Conant requested a 5 minute recess to install year to date 83 expenditures into his spreadsheet. 84 Ellen Faulkner was recognized from the floor, she asked if these were 85 all the expenditures, she asked if there could still be outstanding 86 expenditures not available for today's meeting. Mr Edelman stated 87 that he got the revenues this week and was assured by the financial 88 office that the information was up-to-date. 89 90 Recessed called 9:43am 91 Meeting called back to order at 9:50am 92 93 Discussion: Larry Heath stated that this line should stay the same. 94 Rick stated that his requests for deductions were small but that the 95 deductions would add up in the end. 96 97 Yeas: 5 Nays: 6 Abst: 0 Motion Failed 98 99 **Heat:** Rick Edelman made motion to reduce this line to \$7500, second 100 by Sandy Seaman. 101 102 Discussion: Mark Heitz stated that the town has seen an increase in the propane costs, and with the extreme cold lately, he would rather 103 not see this line decrease. 104 105 Yeas: 6 Nays: 6 Abst: 0 Motion Failed 106 107 Lynn Gainty made a motion to fund this line to \$7800, second by Rick 108 Edelman. 109 110 Yeas: 9 Nays: 3 Abst: 0 Motion Passed 111 112 **Protective Clothing:** Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line to 113 114 \$16,000, second by Mary Fidler.

117	
115	Discussions. Der Mr. Edelmen besed en bister, enending should be
116	Discussion: Per Mr Edelman based on history spending should be
117	decreased. A discussion followed regarding the number of sets of
118	gears needed and also personnel get a \$50 clothing expense.
119	
120	Yeas: 7 Nays: 4 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
121	
122	Seminars and Trainings: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this
123	line at \$8750, second by Mary Fidler.
124	Discussions. Chief Comment that he patient at a training with the Delia
125	Discussion: Chief Seaman that he anticipates a training with the Police
126	dept. on active shooter, also requires lots of consumables.
127	Verse 7 Nover E Abets O Mation Decod
128	Yeas: 7 Nays: 5 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
129 130	<b>Uniforms:</b> Rick Edelman made motion to fund this line at \$4200,
130 131	second by Carol Croteau.
131	second by Calor Croteau.
132	Discussion: Based on spending history, Mr Edelman stated this line
133	should be changed.
134	Should be changed.
135	Yeas: 8 Nays: 3 Abst: 1 Motion Passed
130	reas. o hays. s Abst. I Motion I assed
138	Ed Conant read the new budget total of \$586,250.
139	Rick Edelman made a motion to accept \$586,250, second by Mary
140	Fidler.
141	
142	Yeas: 10 Nays: 2 Abst: 0 Motion passed
143	
144	FOREST FIRES 4221
145	
146	Ed Conant read budget line and budget total.
147	Chief Seaman stated 2017 was a quiet forest fire season.
148	
149	Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept the budget total of \$3000,
150	second by Sandy Seaman
151	
152	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion passed
153	

154	
155	
155	EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 4290
150	
158	Ed Conant read the budget lines.
150	<b>Field Equipment:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to change to \$300, no
160	second, no change
161	
162	Seminars and Trainings: Rick Edelman made motion to change to
163	\$750, second by Ed Conant
164	+····, ·······
165	Yeas: 12 Nays: O Abst: 0 Motion Passed
166	
167	Supplies: Rick made a motion to change to \$400, second by Mary
168	Fidler
169	
170	Discussion: Charles Hart stated he would not want this line reduced.
171	
172	Yeas: 3 Nays: 8 Abst: 0 Motion failed
173	
174	Ed Conant read the new budget total of \$29,464.
175	
176	Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept \$29,464, second by Ed Conant
177	
178	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
179	
180	Ed Conant made motion to take Police and Pest and Animal Control out
181	of order, second by Rick Edelman, Motion Passed.
182	
183	POLICE 4210
184	
185	Ed Conant read the budget lines
186	Salaries: Rick Edelman asked Police Chief Briggs to discuss salaries in
187	that there is \$10,000 over spent in actuals in full time/part time lines.
188	Per Police Chief Briggs, full time, if over spent can tap other lines to
189	cover, Part time personnel can work 2-3 times a week and uses part
190	time personnel rather than pay overtime to full time personnel.
191	During the 2017 year, a part time hire went to full time. He said he
192	had difficulty hiring new personnel.

193	
193 194	Secretary: Mark Heitz asked that this line be change to actual,
194	\$44,720. Ed Conant made motion to change line to \$44,720, second by
196	Sandy Seaman.
197	
198	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abs: 0 Motion Passed
199	
200	Books: Rick Edelman asked about this expenditure, Chief Briggs stated
201	that new books are purchased at the end of the year.
202	
203	Capital Equipment: Lynn Gainty asked Chief Briggs to discuss the line.
204	He is replacing laptops in 2018. No change in line
205	
206	<b>Computer:</b> Per Chief Briggs this line is set by IMC-software contract.
207	
208	Cruiser Maintenance: Rick Edelman made motion to change the
209	\$16,000, second by Mary Fidler.
210	
211	Discussion: Charles Hart asked if there were outstanding bills for
212	December, Chief Briggs said he didn't know of any outstanding bills.
213	Mr Edelman stated that he went with actuals when suggesting the line
214	change.
215	Verse 4 Neves 7 Abets 0 Metice Feiled
216	Yeas: 4 Nays: 7 Abst: 0 Motion Failed
217	<b>Electricity:</b> Dick Edolman made a motion to change \$7000 second by
218	<b>Electricity:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to change \$7000, second by Carol Croteau
219 220	Carol Croleau
220 221	Yeas: 12 Nays: Abst: 0 Motion Passed
222	reas. 12 hays. Abst. 6 Motion rassed
222	Equipment/Supplies: Chuck Hart recommended an increase of \$500
223	from 2017 request.
225	Lynn Gainty made a motion for \$1525, second by Larry Heath
226	
227	Yays: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
228	
229	<b>Prosecutor:</b> Peter Broderick asked that this line be changed to
230	\$17,880.
231	Rick Edelman made a motion for \$17,880, second by Lynn Gainty.

232	
233	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
234	
235	
236	
237	<b>Telephone:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$5300,
238	second by Mary Fidler
239	
240	Yeas: 10 Nays: 2 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
241	
242	Ed Conant read the budget total \$751,987.
243	Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept \$751,987, second by Sandy
244	Seaman.
245	
246	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
247	
248	
249	PEST AND ANIMAL CONTROL 4414
250	
251	Heat/Services: Rick Edelman made a motion for \$200, seconded by
252	Carol Croteau.
253	
254	Discussion: Chief Brigs stated that the furnace in the animal shelter is
255	only turned on when necessary. He may keep an animal in the shelter
256	for 2 to 3 weeks, and if longer the animal is transferred to the
257	NHSPCA.
258	
259	Yeas: 1 Nays: 11 Abst: 0 Motion Failed
260	
261	<b>Mosquito:</b> Mark Heitz stated that this line should stay the same
262	because they town never knows when spraying may be necessary for
263	EEE, West Nile, for spraying of the ballfields. This is typically done
264	when the state gets a positive test result in our area and the state will
265	notify us of this positive test.
266	
267	Rick Edelman made a motion to change this line to \$33,100, second by
268	Carol Croteau.
269	
270	Yeas: 4 Nays: 8 Abst: 0 Motion Failed

- Ed Conant read budget total line of \$54,051. Lynn Gainty made a
  motion to accept \$54,051, second by Sandy Seaman.
- Yeas: 11 Nays: 1 Abst: 0 Motion Passed

Ed Conant made a motion to take Municipal and Highways out of order, second by Sandy Seaman. Motion Passed

- 280 MUNICIPAL 4194
- 282 Ed Conant read the budget lines.
- Salaries: Ed Conant made a motion to change to \$84,760, second by
  Sandy Seaman
- 286

288

291

274

276

279

281

283

287 Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed

Capital Improvements: Rick Edelman made a motion to change to
\$17,000, second by Ed Conant.

- Discussion: Rick Edelman stated that when this line was presented 292 originally that this line had \$20,000 increase, and the reason for the 293 increase in this line was for a new floor for the Recreational Center. 294 He said that according to Rich St Hilaire did not agree with this cost 295 being put in this line, but he was told to do so by the Board of 296 Selectman. There was discussion that other options are available for 297 this floor that are less expensive, and Rich St Hilaire agreed, ie 298 painting the floor. 299
- Rich St Hilaire stated that the police department will need a new furnace; which will be approximately \$25,000, there are other projects
- that need to be done like new steps and repointing the masonry at the Nichols Museum with a cost approximately \$32,000.
- Lynn Gainty stated that we should look at spending some of this out of Capital Reserve fund or the "contingency" fund. Lynn Gainty stated that the Capital Reserve fund is at \$155,000.

307

Ellen Faulkner was recognized from the floor, she stated that she
 discouraged changing this line. There is "lots of work to Nichols."

310 The BOS were asked why the steps and repointing repairs of the 311 Nichols Museum were not going to warrant article. Mark Heitz stated 312 that the voters have passed several warrant articles for the repairs of 313 this building. He stated, it is clear that the town wants to keep this 314 building in good shape so we(BOS) feel we should fund those repairs in 315 the budget. 316 317 Rick Edelman stated that all these repairs were not discussed when 318 319 this budget was presented to KMBC in December. Rich St Hilaire stated that he does this budget in June, therefore he does not know 320 what may needed later in the year. Mr Edelman stated that all this is 321 new information and was not discussed when the budget was 322 323 presented in December. 324 Mr Edelman called for the vote on the motion. 325 326 Yeas: 3 Nays: 9 Abst: 0 Motion Failed 327 328 Ed Conant made a motion to fund this line at \$25,000, second by Rick 329 Edelman 330 331 Discussion: Ellen Falkner was recognized from the floor, she staed 332 there is a list of priorities and sometimes priorities change. 333 334 Yeas: 7 Nays: 5 Abst: 0 Motion Passed 335 336 **Heat:** Lynn Gainty made a motion to fund this line at \$12,000, second 337 by Sandy Seaman. 338 339 Discussion: Peter Broderick that this may not be enough to meet the 340 needs of the town. Lynn Gainty stated that we take into account the 341 needs of the town and cut where we can. Mark Heitz said that this an 342 unusually cold winter and propane costs are up. 343 344 Lynn Gainty and Sandy Seaman withdrew their motion. 345 346 Ed Conant read the new total: \$203,961 347

348	Rick Edelman made a motion to accept \$203,961, second by Ed
349	Conant.
350	
351	Yeas: 11 Nays: 1 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
352	
353	Recess for 5 minutes at 11:22 am.
354	
355	Meeting called to order at 11:29 am
356	
357	HIGHWAY DEPT 4312
358	
359	Ed Conant read the budget lines.
360	
361	Ed Conant read the budget total of \$305,360.
362	
363	Ed Conant made a motion to accept \$305,360, second by Lynn Gainty.
364	
365	Yeas: 11 Nays: 0 Abst: 1 Motion Passed
366	
367	
368	Mark Heitz stated that we should be asking for byes on lines that have
369	over spends. Rick Edelman stated that Peter Broderick presents the
370	budget, if your department heads are overspending you should be
371	asking why. Lynn Gainty stated as a Selectman, when you get monthly
372	expenditures, and if your department heads are overspending, you
373	should be discussing it with them. Ms Gainty stated it is Board of
374	Selectman's job to manage those budgets.
375	
376	Ellen Faulkner was recognized from the floor, she stated that the
377	Board of Selectman and the Budget Committee is suppose to have an
378	adversarial discussion which may focus on cuts to line items. She
379	stated it is set up to be this way.
380	
381	Carol Croteau stated if line items are over spent, then we can use the
382	contingency fund. Mark Heitz stated that if we are overspending, we
383	should be using under expended funds. The contingency fund is for
384	increasing the budget.
385	

386	<b>Overtime:</b> Lynn Gainty made a motion to fund this line at \$55,000,
387	second Ed Conant the motion.
388	Verse Q. Nova 2. About 1. Mation Decod
389	Yeas: 9 Nays: 2 Abs: 1 Motion Passed
390 201	Salt/Ice Treatment: Lynn Gainty stated that this line is budgeted for
391 392	\$80,000, per actuals cost is \$102,294. Lynn Gainty made motion to
392 393	increase this line to \$100,000, second by Larry Heath.
393 394	increase this time to \$100,000, second by Earry neath.
395	Discussion: Rich St Hilaire stated he does not want that much money
396	in that line.
397	
398	Yeas: 5 Nays: 6 Abst: 0 Motion Failed
399	
400	Lynn Gainty made a motion to change the line to \$80,000, second by
401	Sandy Seaman.
402	
403	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
404	
405	<b>Dues:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to change this line to \$75, second
406	by Carol Croteau
407	
408	Yeas: 11 Nays: 1 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
409	<b>Electricity:</b> Dick Edolman made a motion to change this line to \$6250.
410	<b>Electricity:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to change this line to \$6250, second by Carol Croteau
411 412	Discussion: Rich St Hilaire stated he was OK with this figure
412	Discussion. Men se mane stated he was on with this lighte
414	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
415	reas. 12 hays. o hose. o motion rassed
416	Grant Match:
417	Rich St Hilaire stated that he has no grants.
418	5
419	Lynn Gainty made a motion to fund this line at \$1, second Sandy
420	Seaman.
421	
422	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
423	

424	Heat: Lynn made a motion to fund this line at \$6000, second by Sandy
425	Seaman.
426	
427	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
428	
429	Hot Mix: Chuck Hart asked if there is a difference if new roads were
430	in the budget or by warrant article. Rich St Hilaire stated that the
431	voters want the cost of new roads in the budget not by warrant article.
432	
433	Lumber: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund at \$750, second by Ed
434	Conant.
435	
436	Discussion: Rich St Hilaire said he was OK with this figure.
437	
438	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
439	
440	Oil and Grease: Rick made a motion to fund this line at \$2000, second
441	by Carol Croteau
442	
443	Discussion: Rich St Hilaire said he has already spent \$1400 or \$1500.
444	Mr Edelman and Ms Croteau withdrew their motions.
445	
446	Safety: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$2500,
447	second by Mary Fidler.
448	Discussions, Dish (t. Hilsing is OK with this figure
449	Discussion: Rich St Hilaire is OK with this figure
450	Verse 11 Nover 1 Abst. O Motion Decod
451	Yeas: 11 Nays: 1 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
452	Snow Plowing. Rich St Hilpiro stated he is unsure where this figure
453	<b>Snow Plowing:</b> Rich St Hilaire stated he is unsure where this figure will go and he recommends changing this line to \$100,000
454	will go, and he recommends changing this line to \$100,000.
455	Lypp Gainty made a motion to fund this line at \$110,000, second by
456	Lynn Gainty made a motion to fund this line at \$110,000, second by Carol Croteau.
457	Carol Croleau.
458 450	Veas: 8 Nave: 1 Abst: 0 Motion Passod
459 460	Yeas: 8 Nays: 4 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
460 461	Stormwater: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$6000,
462	second by Mary Fidler.

463	
464	Discussion: Rich St Hilaire stated he is waiting for the EPA mandate
465	for these projects.
466	
467	Mr Edelman and Ms Fidler withdrew their motions
468	
469	<b>Telephone:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$3500,
470	second by Carol Croteau
471	
472	Discussion: Rich St Hilaire is ok with this figure
473	5
474	Yeas: 12 Nays: O Abst: 0 Motion Passed
475	·
476	Tree Removal: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at
477	\$1000, second by Mary Fidler.
478	
479	Discussion: Rich St Hilaire he is OK with this figure as he has two new
480	employees who can do this work.
481	
482	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
483	
484	Ed Conant read the new budget total of \$965,836
485	
486	Sandy Seaman made a motion to accept \$965,836, second by Lynn
487	Gainty.
488	
489	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
490	
491	OTHER HIGHWAY 4319
492	Ed Consist word the buildret lines and total
493	Ed Conant read the budget lines and total.
494	Luma Caintu made a matien to accept \$170, 170, second by Candy
495	Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept \$179, 179, second by Sandy
496	Seaman.
497	Vaver 12 Naver O Abets O Motion Decod
498 400	Yays: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
499 500	Rick Edelman made a motion to take Library out of order, second by
500 501	Rick Edelman made a motion to take Library out of order, second by
501	Lynn Gainty. Motion Passed.

502 LIBRARY 4450

503

506

510

521

524

527

529

532

534

504 **Salaries:** Rick Edelman made a motion to change this line to \$101,533, 505 second by Lynn Gainty.

507 Discussion followed on the salaries of full and part time employees at 508 the library. It was noted that the library keeps money that is not 509 expended at the end of the year.

- 511 Ellen Faulkner was recognized on the floor. She stated that the library 512 budget has been changed over the years to make it better. Ms 513 Faulkner stated that although by state statute they are allowed to 514 keep any unspent funds they get from the town, they do not want to 515 operate that way. She stated they have \$40,000 excess that they want 516 to return to the town; that they will writing a check back to the town
- for this figure after March, 2018. Lynn Gainty asked if Ms Faulkner
   planned on putting this in the Libraries report for the Annual Town
   Report. Ms Faulkner said yes.
- 520 After discussion Mr Edelman and Ms Gainty withdrew their motion.
- 522 Part Time Staff: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at
  523 \$85,758, second by Carol Croteau.
- 525 Discussion: A discussion followed, it was decided to keep the line 526 funded at \$87,546.
- 528 Rick Edelman and Carol Croteau withdrew their motion.
- 530 **FICA:** Lynn Gainty asked if this line reflected actuals. Ms Faulkner 531 said that she gets these numbers from the finance office.
- 533 Ed Conant read the total budget figure of \$327,295.
- 535 Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept \$327,295, second by Sandy 536 Seaman.
- 538 Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passesd
- 539

537

- 540 Lynn Gainty made a motion to take Human Services out of order, 541 second by Sandy Seaman. Motion Passed.
- 542
- 543 544

546

548

551

553

## 545 HUMAN SERVICES 4441

547 Ed Conant read the budget lines.

549 Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept \$14,371 as the total for this 550 budget, second by Sandy Seaman.

552 Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 ABST: 0 Motion Passed

## 554 **GENERAL ASSISTANCE 4442**

555

557

556 Ed Conant read the budget lines.

**Medical/Misc:** Carol Croteau discussed an issue regarding Family 558 Mediation and Juvenile Services is having financial challenges, and that 559 last October the agency laid off their Director and the Administrator 560 was now running the agency. Ms Croteau discussed with Chief Briggs 561 this agency, he said, he does not refer families to this agency 562 anymore. Chief Briggs told Ms Croteau, if a child needed to perform 563 community service he has the child do the community service at the 564 police station. Ms Croteau stated that she discussed increasing the 565 Medical/Misc line in this budget with Ellen Faulkner, so that if families 566 needed help to pay cost related to family counseling or individual 567 counseling there would be funds available to those who qualify. Ellen 568 Faulkner stated, from the floor, that she agreed with this action to see 569 how it goes. Ms Croteau recommended that this may be best for the 570 town. 571 572

- 573 **Medical/Misc:** Carol Croteau made a motion to fund this line at \$4000, 574 second by Rick Edelman.
- 576 Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 ABST: 0 Motion Passed
- 577

575

578	<b>Electricity:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$2500,
579 580	second by Mary Fidler.
580 581	Discussion: Ms Faulkner that the average request are average \$200,
581 582	and may be higher if shutoff notices are occurring. Ms Faulkner stated
583	that the town is obligated by State statute to cover "welfare"
584	requests.
585	•
586	Yeas: 2 Nays: 9 Abst: 0 Motion Failed
587	
588 589	<b>Heat:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$2000, no second
590	second
590 591	Mortgage: Rick Edelman made motion to fund at \$8000, second by
591 592	Charles Hart.
593	
594	Discussion: Ellen Faulkner stated that this line can be deplete if one
595	family experiences a fire.
596	
597	Yeas: 3 Nays: 8 Abst: 0 Motion Failed
598	Dente Diele Edulation and de constitue to found this line of \$2000 second
599 600	<b>Rent:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$9000, second by Carol Croteau
601	
602	Discussion: Ellen Faulkner reiterated that the same can happen with
603	this line as the mortgage line.
604	
605	Yeas: 4 Nays: 7 Abst: 0 motion failed
606	
607	Ed Conant read the new total for this budget at \$29,700.
608	
609	Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept \$29,700, second by Sandy
610	Seaman.
611	
612	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed.
613	
614	Recess for 5 minutes 12:55pm
615	·
616	Recess was extended to a lunch break

617	
618	Meeting Call to order 1:24pm
619	Stan Shallet was absent from the meeting
620	
621	
622	
623	
624	SOCIAL SERVICES AGENCIES 4445
625	
626	Drugs are Dangerous: Carol Croteau made a motion to fund this line
627	at \$3500, second by Gary Finnerty.
628	
629	Discussion: Ms Croteau explained that the request for funds came to
630	the town in December after the last KMBC meeting. This is their
631	annual request.
632	·
633	Yeas: 9 Nays: 0 Abst: 2 Motion Passed
634	
635	Family Mediation and Juvenile Services: Lynn Gainty made a motion
636	to fund this line at 0, second by Rick Edelman
637	
638	Yeas: 11 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
639	
640	Stan Shallet returned to the meeting at 1:35pm
641	5 1
642	The new total was read by Ed Conant of \$33,744.
643	Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept \$33,744, second by Charles Hart.
644	,,,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,
645	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst. 0 Motion Passed
646	
647	
648	EXECUTIVE 4130
649	
650	Salaries: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$12,200,
651	second by Carol Croteau.
652	· ·····
653	Discussion: The selectman stated that they have a right by law to set
654	their salaries. Selectman Broderick stated that we have always been
655	paid \$85 a week, I believe it is set by statute, and the budget

committee can't tell us what to pay ourselves. We determine what we 656 get paid just like the budget committee cannot tell us what to pay 657 employees of the town. 658 Carol Croteau asked for the RSA that stated this? None was given. 659 Rick Edelman stated what was proposed at Deliberative session, last 660 year was not to raise this line, because the current 3 member Board of 661 Selectman will have less work load and will spread the work load over 662 5 members. Peter Broderick reiterated that they have the right to 663 determine their salaries. Rick Edelman said he will withdraw his 664 motion. Ms Croteau stated that she wanted the BOS to provide the 665 RSA, and she withdrew her motion. 666 667 **Overtime:** Rick Edelman made a motion to fund at \$300, second by 668 Carol Croteau 669 670 671 Discussion: There was a general discussion regarding potential overtime. 672 673 Yeas: 2 Nays: 9 Abst: 0 Motion Failed 674 675 Computer Maintenance: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this at 676 \$11,100, second by Mary Fidler. 677 678 Discussion: The Board of Selectman made the comment that there is a 679 cooperation with the school district for help on maintenance, but 680 there is no contract, therefore we cannot expect that they will 681 continue. Sandi Rogers-Osterloh stated that there is no expectation 682 that they will not continue. 683 684 Yeas: 7 Navs: 5 Abst: 0 Motion Passed 685 686 **Computer Upgrades:** Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at 687 \$3500, no second. 688 689 Equipment Contracts: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line 690 691 at \$750, second by Ed Conant. 692 Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion passed 693 694

695	Equipment Repairs: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at
696	\$300, second by Sandi Rogers-Osterloh.
697	Discussions. The Cale starts stated that he same them is an under some
698	Discussion: The Selectman stated that because there is an unknown
699 <b>-</b> 22	aspect to repairs they would not recommend lowering this line.
700	Diele Edelman, and Candi Dagara Ostanlah with draw thair mations
701	Rick Edelman and Sandi Rogers-Osterloh withdrew their motions
702	Office Fauinments lynn Cointy saled what office equipment is
703	<b>Office Equipment:</b> Lynn Gainty asked what office equipment is
704 705	needed to be purchased? The selectmen answered that they did not
705 706	know.
706	Lype Cainty made a motion to fund this line at \$500, second by Sandy
707	Lynn Gainty made a motion to fund this line at \$500, second by Sandy Seaman.
708 700	Sealliall.
709 710	Varse 12 Navise 0 Abste 0 Mation passad
710 711	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion passed
711	<b>Recording Fees:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at
712	\$1800, second by Ed Conant.
713	
714	Discussion: It was stated that this line also has offsetting revenue.
716	Discussion. It was stated that this the also has offsetting revenue.
717	Yeas: 10 Nays: 1 Abst: 0 Motion passed
718	
719	Supplies: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$3400,
720	second by Carol Croteau.
721	
722	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
723	
724	
725	Tax Maps: A question was asked to explain what this line was for, and
726	it was explained that this line is for updating tax maps when new
727	housing happens.
728	
729	Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$3000, second by
730	Sandi Rogers-Osterloh.
731	
732	Yeas: 8 Nays: 4 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
733	

734 735	<b>Telephone:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$6300, second by Mary Fidler
736	
737	Yeas: 6 Nays: 6 Abst: 0 Motion failed
738	
739	Town Cable: Peter Broderick made a motion to fund this line at
740	\$5500, second by Ed Conant.
741	
742	Discussion: Mr Broderick stated that the extra \$5000 is what he
743	proposes for a salary to pay a person to run video equipment to
744	broadcast town meetings over the cable tv channel. He anticipated it
745	would be approximately 362 hours of work. He stated that he has 2
746	people interested in running the video equipment.
747	
748	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion passed
749	
750	Town Reports: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at
751	\$1800, second by Sandi Rogers-Osterloh.
752	
753	Yeas: 11 Nays 1: Abst: 0 Motion Passed
754	
755	Ed Conant read the new budget total of \$369,791
756	
757	Sandy Seaman made a motion to accept \$369,791, second by Lynn
758	Gainty.
759	
760	Yeas: 10 Nays: 2 Abst: 0 Motion Passed.
761	
762 762	ELECTIONS and REGISTRATIONS 4140
763	Ed Conant road the budget lines and the budget total of \$12,050
764 765	Ed Conant read the budget lines and the budget total of \$12,050.
765 766	Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept the figure of \$12,050, second by
767	Sandy Seaman.
768	Sandy Scanian.
769	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
770	
771	
772	

773 774	FINANCE ADMINISTRATION 4150
775 776	Ed Conant read the budget lines.
777 778 779	<b>Supplies:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$500, no second.
780 781 782	Ed Conant made a motion to fund this line at \$100, second by Lynn Gainty.
782 783 784 785 786 787 788	Discussion: Rick Edelman stated that his company, UniFirst, supplied the binders for the Budget Committee. Mark Heitz stated that a Thank You letter should be sent to the company. Rick Edelman stated that a letter of thanks should be sent to his company and address to Attn: Michael Ruttner, Vice President.
789 790	Yeas: 7 Nays: 4 Abst: 0 Motion passed
790 791 792 793	<b>Legal Ads:</b> Rick made a motion to fund this line at \$400, second by Carol Croteau
793 794 795 796	Before discussion occurred, Ed Conant made a motion to fund this line at \$100, second by Lynn Gainty.
790 797 798	Yeas: 1 Nays: 11 Abst: 0 Motion failed
799 799 800 801	Lynn Gainty made a motion to fund this line at \$250, second by Sandy Seaman.
802 803	Yeas: 8 Nays: 2 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
803 804 805 806	<b>Meals and Mileage:</b> Lynn Gainty made a motion to fund this line at \$800, second by Sandy Seaman.
807	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion passed
808 809 810 811	<b>Seminars:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$100, second by Ed Conant

812	Yeas: 1 Nays: 11 Abst: 0 Motion failed
813	
814	Budget Clerical: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at
815	\$1000, second by Carol Croteau
816	
817	Discussion: It was determined after a short discussion that since the
818	person who has been recording minutes for the KMBC has been absent
819 820	due to health issues, that lowering the line to \$1000 would be
820 821	inappropriate at this time. Rick Edelman and Carol Croteau withdrew their motion
821 822	Rick Edetman and Carol Crolead withdrew their motion
822 823	Ed Conant made a motion to fund this line at \$1300, second by Lynn
823 824	Gainty.
825	Suncy.
826	Yeas: 7 Nays: 5 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
827	
828	Salaries-Clerk/Tax Collector: Mark Heitz stated that the actual cost
829	for this line should be \$52,000.
830	
831	Lynn Gainty made a motion to fund this line at \$52,000, second by Rick
832	Edelman
833	
834	Yeas: 11 Nays: 1 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
835 836	Ed Conant read the new total for this budget of \$119,905.
830 837	
838	Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept \$119,905, second by Sandy
839	Seaman.
840	
841	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
842	
843	LEGAL EXPENSE 4153
844	
845	Ed Conant read the budget line of \$35,000.
846 847	Sandy Saaman made a motion to accent \$25,000, second by Lymp
847 848	Sandy Seaman made a motion to accept \$35,000, second by Lynn
848 849	Gainty.
047	

850	Discussion: Rick Edelman asked how often are attorneys consulted?
851	Mark Heitz responded on an as needed basis. Mr Edelman asked Mr
852	Heitz if an attorney reviews contracts, and was the Waste Management
853	contract reviewed by an attorney? Mark Heitz said no.
854	
855	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
856	
857	
858	PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION 4155
859	
860	Ed Conant read the lines in this budget.
861	
862	FICA: Lynn Gainty stated that her byes were related to changes in
863	salaries. Mark Heitz stated that he made small adjustments.
864	
865	Ed Conant read the budget total \$973,371.
866	
867	Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept the total of \$973,371, second by
868	Sandy Seaman.
869	
870	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
871	
872	PLANNING BOARD 4191
873	Ed Conant read the lines of this budget
874	
875	<b>Tech Consultant:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at
876	\$1100, second by Sandi Rogers-Osterloh.
877	Verse 11 Nove 1 Abots O Mation presed
878	Yeas: 11 Nays: 1 Abst: 0 Motion passed
879	Telephenes Dick Edolman made a motion to fund this line at \$100 no.
880	<b>Telephone:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$100, no
881	second.
882	Lynn Gainty made a motion to fund this line at 0, second by Carol
883	Croteau.
884 885	Croteau.
885 886	Discussion: Ms Gainty stated that this cost should be in the Executive
887	budget. Rick Edelman withdrew his motion.
888	

889 890	Yeas: 11 Nays: 1 Abst: 0 Motion passed
891	Ed Conant read the new budget total \$60,487
892 893 894	Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept \$60487, second by Sandy Seaman.
895 896 897	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
898 899	ZBA 4191
900 901 902 903 904 905	<b>Supplies:</b> Rick Edelman asked the BOS what was the bill for \$1257 on December 1, 2017 was for? Mark Heitz said he believed it was for an appraisal regarding Sanborn Regional School negotiations. The question was asked if this cost belonged in this department. Mark Heitz stated that it is probably an accounting error.
905 906 907	Ed Conant read the budget total of \$1680.
908 909	Ed Conant made a motion to accept \$1680, second by Rick Edelman.
910 911	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
912 913 914	Peter Broderick made a motion to take Health out of order because he had to leave soon, second by Ed Conant, motion passed
915 916	HEALTH 4411
917 918	Ed Conant read the budget lines and total of \$20,475
919 920 921	Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept to \$20,475, second by Sandy Seaman.
922 923	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
924 925	Recess at 2:58 pm
926 927	Meeting called to order at 3:04 pm

928 929	Mark Heitz stated that the ZBA had a one time purchase for a laptop for the Chair of ZBA. Therefore the \$1257 is for a computer not for an
930 021	appraisal.
931	HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 4191
932	
933	Ed Conant read the budget lines.
934	Level Ade. Deter Brederick mede a metion to fund this line at \$200
935	Legal Ads: Peter Broderick made a motion to fund this line at \$200,
936	second by Lynn Gainty.
937	Vacan 12 Novem O Abots O Mation Desced
938	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
939	Ed Consistence dithe many hundret total of \$4.425
940	Ed Conant read the new budget total of \$1425.
941	Condy Coomon mode a motion to accort \$1425, second by Lynn Cointy
942	Sandy Seaman made a motion to accept \$1425, second by Lynn Gainty.
943	Verse 12 Nover 0 Abst. 0 Motion Decod
944	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
945	CEMETERIES 4195
946 047	CEMETERIES 4195
947 948	Millstream Salaries: It was stated that Millstream cemetery has
949 950	offsetting revenues.
950 951	Lynn Gainty made a motion for \$1400, second by Ed Conant
951 952	Lynn Gainty made a motion for \$1400, second by Ed Conant
952 953	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
954	reas. 12 hays. 6 Abst. 6 Motion rassed
955	Millstream Improvements: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this
956	line at \$500, second by Mary Fidler
957	the ac pool, second by mary ridter
958	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
959	
960	Improvements: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$750,
961	second by Ed Conant
962	
963	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
964	
965	Gary Finerty asked why stone repair money is allocated in two places?
966	

967 968	A question was asked about Salaries and Mowing. The BOS stated that the Sexton is paid depending on a per burial basis, he is paid hourly as
908 969	needed. The Sexton reports to the Trustees of the Trust Fund.
970	Several people wondered why there were no expenditures in several
971	lines, over several years.
972	
973	Lynn Gainty made a motion to make all the lines that had no
974	expenditures last year at \$50, second by Gary Finerty.
975	
976	After a short discussion, Sandy Seaman, who is the liaison for the
977	Trustees of the Trust Fund, stated that she would call the Chair of the
978	Trustees to get more information.
979	
980	Ms Gainty and Mr Finerty withdrew their motion.
981	
982	Ed Conant read the budget total of \$37,392
983	
984	Ed Conant made a motion to accept \$37, 392, second by Charles Hart.
985	Vacas 10 Novas 2 Abats 0 Matica passad
986	Yeas: 10 Nays: 2 Abst: 0 Motion passed
987 988	INSURANCE 4196
988 989	INSURANCE 4190
990	Ed Conant read the budget lines and the budget total of \$59,472.
991	Dick Edolman made a motion to accost \$50,472, cacood by Sandy
992 993	Rick Edelman made a motion to accept \$59,472, second by Sandy Seaman.
994	Scanan.
995	Yeas: 11 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
996	
997	Peter Broderick left the meeting at 3:27pm. Selectman George Korn
998	continued as alternate for Board of Selectman Ex Officio
999	representative.
1000	
1001	
1002	
1003	REGIONAL ASSOCIATION 4197
1004	
1005	Ed Conant read the budget line and budget total of \$6069.

1006	
1000	Rick Edelman made a motion to accept \$6069, second by Sandy
1008	Seaman.
1009	
1010	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
1011	
1012	OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 4199
1013	Ed Conant road the budget lines
1014 1015	Ed Conant read the budget lines.
1015	Cable Operation Salary: It was brought up that the cable salaries
1017 1018	discussed in the Executive budget should be placed in this line.
1018	Ed Conant made a motion to fund this line at \$5000, second by Sandy
1019	Seaman.
1021	
1022	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
1022	
1024	Action Item: We need to reduce the Town Cable Channel line in the
1025	Executive dept. 4130, to \$500. This will have to be done at the KMBC
1026	next meeting on Saturday, January 13, 2018.
1027	
1028	Gasoline: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$67,000,
1029	second by Mary Fidler.
1030	
1031	Discussion: Mark Heitz stated he was OK with this figure. Gary
1032	Finerty asked if all departments were reflected in this figure. Mr Heitz
1033	stated yes.
1034	
1035	Yeas: 11 Nays: 1 Abst: 0 Motion passed
1036	
1037	Physicals: George Korn made a motion for \$6000, second by Ed
1038	Conant
1039	
1040	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
1041	-
1042	Ed Conant read the total budget \$148,000.
1043	

1044 1045 1046	Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept \$148,000, second by Sandy Seaman.
1047	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
1048 1049 1050 1051	TOWN INSPECTOR 4240 Ed Conant read the budget lines.
1051 1052 1053 1054 1055	<b>Salaries:</b> Rick Edelman asked Mark Heitz, why in the month of December in salaries line \$4257 was posted, when the other months it is posted \$2100? Mr Heitz stated he will check with Cindy Kenerson.
1056 1057	Ed Conant read the budget total \$32,801.
1058 1059	Ed Conant made a motion to accept \$32,800, second by Rick Edelman
1060 1061	This motion was withdrawn to discuss Environmental Inspections.
1062 1063 1064	<b>Environmental Inspections:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$1, second by Lynn Gainty.
1064 1065 1066	Discussion: In order to keep this line open was funded at \$1.
1067 1068	Yeas: 11 Nays: 1 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
1069 1070	Ed Conant read the new budget total of \$32,801.
1071 1072 1073	Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept \$32,801, second by Sandy Seaman.
1074 1075	Yeas: 11 Nays: 1 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
1076 1077	STREETLIGHTS 4316
1078 1079	Ed Conant read the budget line and total of \$30,000.
1080 1081 1082	Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept \$30,000, Second by Sandy Seaman.

- 1083 Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
- 1085 **SANITATION 4323**

1084

1086

1088

1095

1097

1099

1101

1087 Ed Conant read the budget lines.

Residential Pick up: Rick Edelman asked the Board of Selectman what
is the waste tonnage is for Kingston. Mark Heitz responded, 2300 tons.
Rick Edelman stated that according to the new contract, the cost in
the first year is \$76.50/ton. Mr.Edelman wondered if this line was
enough. After a short discussion it was decided that that line had
enough money to cover the first year.

- 1096 Ed Conant read the budget total \$503,129.
- 1098 Ed Conant made a motion to accept \$503,129, second by Lynn Gainty.
- 1100 Yeas: 11 Nays: 1 Abst: 0 Motion Passed

Rick Edelman asked the Board of Selectman did they go to bid on the 1102 waste pick up contract. The Board of Selectman responded no. Mr 1103 Edelman stated that he reviewed the contract and had an attorney at 1104 his work review this contract. Mr. Edelman pointed out that the new 1105 contract signed has an initial 8% increase, additional 3% increases 1106 every year for the next 5 years, and language that allows Waste 1107 Management to request additional price increases as their business 1108 needs change. The town has the option of accepting the additional 1109 price increase, negotiating a price increase that is acceptable to both 1110 parties or the matter goes to binding arbitration. If the matter goes to 1111 binding arbitration there is no prevailing party language to cover the 1112 town for legal fees. Mr. Edelman stated this is what he does in his 1113 profession and he picked these things out. Mr Edelman stated, in his 1114 opinion, this new agreement was very bad for the town. 1115

1116

1118

- 1117 **RECREATION 4520**
- 1119 Ed Conant read the budget lines.
- 1120

1121 1122	<b>Dues:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$75, second by Sandy Seaman.
1123	
1124	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
1125	
1126	<b>Seminars:</b> Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$2300,
1127	second by Mary Fidler
1128	
1129	Discussion: Mr Edelman stated based on history of spending on this
1130	line should be reduced. After further discussion, Mr Edelman and Mary
1131	Fidler withdrew their motion.
1132 1133	Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$2350, second by
1133	Mary Fidler.
1134	Mary Flater.
1136	Yeas: 11 Nays: 1 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
1137	
1138	Senior Events: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at
1139	\$3200, second by Sandi Rogers-Osterloh.
1140	
1141	Yeas: 9 Nays: 3 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
1142	
1143	Ed Conant read the budget total of \$88,365
1144	Lynn Cointy mode a motion to accept \$99.245, accept by Condy
1145	Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept \$88,365, second by Sandy Seaman.
1146 1147	Seaman.
1147 1148	Yeas: 11 Nays: 0 Abst: 1 Motion Passed
1140	reus. In huys. o Abse. I motion i ussed
1150	PATRIOTIC PURPOSES 4583
1151	
1152	Ed Conant read the budget line and budget total.
1153	
1154	Rick Edelman made a motion to accept \$700, second by Sandy Seaman
1155	
1156	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
1157	HISTORICAL MUSEUM COMMITTEE 4589
1158 1159	TISTURICAL MUSEUM CUMMITTEE 4309
1137	

1160 Ed Conant read the budget lines.

1161

1164

1169

1171

1173

1175

1177

1179

1181

1184

1188

1191

1195

1197

Archival/Museum Supplies: Rick Edelman made a motion to fund this line at \$600, second by Lynn Gainty.

Discussion: Rick Edelman stated that he wanted to remove the cost of \$694 for the camera. He stated, a donation could made to fund the camera. Lynn Gainty stated that Leslie Hume could ask the 325 Anniversary Community for the funds.

- 1170 Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
- 1172 Ed Conant read the budget total of \$4968.
- 1174 Lynn Gainty made a motion to accept \$4968, second by Sandy Seaman.
- 1176 Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
- 1178HERITAGE COMMISSION 4590
- 1180 Ed Conant read the budget lines.
- 1182 **Signs:** Charles Hart made a motion to fund this line at \$4200, second 1183 by Ed Conant.
- Discussion: Sandy Seaman stated that it would be better to buy 2 or 3 signs a year so that not all 10 signs would be replaced in the same year.
- Sandy Seaman made a motion to fund this line at \$960, second by EdConant.
- Discussion: Sandy reiterated her point of buying only a few signs a year. George Korn stated he would rather buy all the signs at and have them made of good materials so they do not deteriorate.
- 1196 Yeas: 10 Nays: 2 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
- 1198 Ed Conant read the budget total of \$3610.

1199	
1200	Ed Conant made a motion to fund this line for \$3610, second by Rick
1201	Edelman.
1202	
1203	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
1204	
1205	
1206	CONSERVATION 4611
1207	
1208	Ed Conant read the budget lines and total of \$6000
1209	
1210	Ed Conant made a motion to accept \$6000, second by Sandy Seaman.
1211	
1212	Yeas: 12 Nays: 0 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
1213	
1214	Ed Conant read the Operating Budget Grand total of \$5,693,528.
1215	
1216	Ed Conant made a motion to accept \$5,693,528, second by Sandy
1217	Seaman.
1218	Verse 11 Nover 1 Abots O Mation Decod
1219	Yeas: 11 Nays: 1 Abst: 0 Motion Passed
1220	The Default Budget was discussed, Lynn Gainty stated that the Board
1221 1222	of Selectman needs to prepare the Default Budget. Mark Heitz stated
1222	that it will be complete for next weeks meeting on Saturday, January,
1223	13, 2018.
1224	
1225	Lynn Gainty made a motion to adjourn, second by Rick Edelman.
1220	Motion Passed.
1227	Meeting Adjourned at 4:33pm
1229	
1230	